NOTE:  The following Attachments can be found on the SAMHSA Website and on FedBizOps and make up the entire package of Amendment 1:

1.  SF 30 Amendment of Solicitation

2.  Questions and Answers

3.  Revised Section F

4.  NCADI Government Furnished Equipment (GFE) List

5.  NCADI Monthly Report – July 2003

6.  NMHIC Monthly Report – July 2003

Questions ( RFP No. 277-04-6091

General

1. Question: A site visit was held on November 25, 2003, at the various NCADI/NMHIC locations. Is it a bid requirement that the Offeror must have attended the site visit in order to submit a proposal on this solicitation?

Answer:  No.

2. Question:  Reference Attachment 1/Section C/page 10 re: the Information Network Library.  Please define any skills, qualifications, and credentials required by the staff of the library, especially in the duties of assisting the public or conducting tours.

Answer: Offeror shall propose.

3. Question:  In the cover letter, it says the technical proposal should not exceed 100 pages, but then, on page 3 of the Statement of Work, in item #3, it says offerors should not exceed a 150-page limit on the technical proposal.
Answer: Correction: Technical Proposal shall not exceed 150 pages.  This page limitation includes all exhibits, graphs, charts etc, exclusive of references, resumes, letters of commitment, organizational charts, etc.  Resumes shall be limited to two pages.  Any Appendix to the technical proposal shall not exceed 100 pages in length.  

4. Question: Will the appendices be evaluated and included in the scoring, or simply considered as support material?  This issue is of concern because given the page limitations; essential information related to the technical approach will have to be located in the RFP and therefore, should be evaluated.

Answer:  The appendices will be evaluated and included in the scoring.

5. Question: Should the Sample Work Plan for Task I and Call Center Operations be included within the technical proposal page limit?

Answer:  The sample work plan can be in the appendices.  

6. Question:  General Requirement A. 2., indicates, “the contractor shall have the capacity for satellite downlink and multimedia presentations (including Internet access) to large groups.”  Could the Government please indicate (1) Where do the satellite programs originate, SAMHSA’s studios and/or other locations? (2) Are satellite uplink and satellite time provided (purchased) by SAMHSA outside of this contract? (3) Is Web streaming and storage of these broadcasts for video on demand access provided separately by SAMSHA or is it to be part of this contract?

Answer: 1. Programming may originate from any source/location. 2. Contractor shall provide for all uplink fees and services. 3. Contractor shall provide storage and playback of broadcasts via any media to include: video, webcast, DVD, and streaming audio/video.

7. Question: General Requirements A. 3., page 3 indicates an 8-week transition period. Section F2 of Deliverables, page 11 indicates a 10 day start up of the Call Center and Warehouse Operation functions, 1 month EDOC of the final training curriculum, and 3 months EDOC and annually for the final training curriculum.  Please clarify.

Answer:  An 8-week transition period between contracts is anticipated.  The other dates indicate activity timelines within the transition period.

8. Question:  General Requirements A. 7., page 4, states, “contractor will establish a new SAMHSA toll-free, in-bound telephone line.” Could the Government clarify if SAMHSA has pre-reserved numbers already registered for these toll-free lines? 

Answer: Not as of this date. The Government will provide this toll-free number.
9. Question:  Task II, B.1, states, “Sample monthly reports from both the NCADI and NMHIC contracts will be made available electronically.”  Could the Government please indicate when and where these reports will be made available to offerors?  

Answer:  These documents are available on SAMHSA's Website and FedBizOps.

10. Question: Are the current customer surveys available for review and where can they be found?

Answer:  No, all of the surveys will be made available after contract award.  The NMHIC web survey is available online.

11. Question:  Task II, A.2, states, “The PO will supply existing SAMHSA performance measures”.  Do the existing SAMHSA performance measures differ from those provided in Attachment 2, the Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan?  If yes, please provide offerers with the existing measures so that we can adequately construct an approach for the strategic plan.

Answer:  No.

12. Question: Task II, B.2. Of the criteria listed (e.g. customer satisfaction, ordering trends by Congressional district and state, web traffic metrics, public private partnerships, as well as GPRA and PART data) can the Government rank these factors as to their level of importance in determining award fees?

Answer: The Award Fee is determined by the contractor's performance level i/a/w the Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan (QASP).

13. Question:  Task II, C., states, “The contractor shall review existing NCADI and NMHIC operations policies and procedures, and consolidate and revise them as appropriate into one set of policies and procedures to meet the requirements and quality assurance standards for all tasks.” Could the Government please clarify if offerors will have access to existing policies and procedures during the proposal process?  

Answer:  No, materials will be available to the successful contractor during the transition period.

14. Question:  Task III, A.1.c, requires a Market Research Data Base.  For budget purposes, would the Government please provide some guidance on level of effort?  For example, does this require X% of an FTE, or 5 research activities a month, or 10 meetings a month? 

Answer:   For budgeting purposes, assume one research activity per month.

15. Question:  Task III, A.1.d, states, “Data collected through the bi-annual ‘Survey of Mental Health Organizations (SMHO),’ General Hospital Mental Health Services, and Managed Care Organizations (MCO).” Will this survey be a responsibility of the contractor for this solicitation?

Answer:  The survey will not be a responsibility of this project.

16. Question: Task III, A., For each of the databases addressed in this section - a. IDA database, b. PMD and TRD databases, c. Market Research database, d. Mental Health Facilities Locater, e. Mental Health Facilities Locater, and f. SAMHSA Budget-Performance database - please clarify where the hosting server is physically located (at contractor site or at SAMHSA).  In either case, please respond to the following questions: 

· What database management system (and version) is used?

· What are the computer system hardware specifications and operating system version of the hosting server?

· How do the users currently access the database (web interface, local access, client-server interface, etc.)?

If the server is maintained at the current contractor site, does the hosting server hardware and software transfer to the new contractor? If no, what will be provided to the contractor?

Answer: Host server is currently located at contractor site. Offeror shall propose system configuration as well as software and hardware specifications. All data sets transfer.

17. Question:  Task III, A.1.f, regarding the SAMHSA Budget-Performance Database, what is the status of the budget/performance database?  What software application is used, and is it fully functional at this time (e.g., graphics and user-friendly access and interface?)

Answer: Offeror shall propose the development and operation of this database

18. Question:  Task III, B, (Call Center Operations chart) provides monthly call volume and the individual phone numbers. Could the Government provide the average length of calls for each toll-free line?  

      Answer:



Length of time
Toll-Free Line


1:30 min.
NCADI general services

Not recorded
NCADI TDD (hearing impaired)

Included in NCADI
NCADI Spanish language

Included in NCADI
NCADI Soy Unica, Soy Latina

2:42 min.
NMHIC general services

Not recorded
NMHIC TDD (hearing impaired)

2:20 min.
SAMHSA/CSAT National Drug Information and Treatment Referral Services Helpline

Included in NCADI
ONDCP Natl. Youth Anti-Drug Media Campaign

Included in NCADI.
ONDCP Spanish line (Sin Drogas)

Included in NCADI
ONDCP Community Coalitions and You Can Help Kids campaigns

Included in NCADI
Ecstasy line (PDFA)

Not recorded
Wally Bear (recorded messages)

Not recorded
SkyShapers (recorded messages)

Not recorded
ONDCP-Korean line (recorded message)

Not recorded
ONDCP-Vietnamese line (recorded message)

Not recorded
ONDCP-Cantonese line (recorded message)

Not recorded
ONDCP-Mandarin line (recorded message)

Not recorded
ONDCP-Cambodian line (recorded message)
19. Question: Are the toll-free numbers listed maintained and paid for by the Federal government directly?

Answer: Yes.

20. Question: Can you provide information regarding the days of the week for operation of the ONDCP lines?

Answer: This line operates 18 hours per day 7 days per week coverage excluding Federal holidays.
21. Question:  Task III, B.1, page 13. states the offeror should “Propose a range of call center services to be offered to requestors, free of charge and on a cost-recovery basis”.  Could the Government please provide the range of call center services now offered to requestors, free of charge and on a cost-recovery basis?

Answer:  The existing services are listed on pp. 13-14.

22. Question: Task III, B.1, page 14. please provide a description of the "Request for Service system."

Answer:  Currently, there is a single entry point for Federal requests for NCADI services to ensure accountability.  Requests include:  materials support for conferences and meetings, rush orders for materials, graphics support, direct mailings, courier delivery, photocopying, and literature reviews.  This service shall apply to all Information Network  functions and activities.

23. Question: Task III, C. To clarify the requirements of the migration plan, do you expect the sites to migrate first from the current contractor to the new contractor and then to the SAMHSA facility?

Answer:  The current site will migrate to the new contractor.
24. Question:  Task III, C, identifies the Internet Site Migration Plan as a deliverable item. Could the Government please provide the timeline that will be required for completing the migration plan?

Answer:  Migration Plan shall be included in the Annual Work Plan.  See p. 4 for the timeline for the Annual Workplan.

25. Question:  Task III, C, identifies the SAMHSA’s Website Privacy Policy.  Item 1 speaks to developing and maintaining what appears to be new initiatives.  Please clarify the status of the activities presented.

Answer: These activities are ongoing. Refer to Task III, C. 2.

26. Question: Task III, C, Is the work described in this section limited to the products cited including Editorial Support, Periodic Publications, and New or Repackaged Program Resources, or are there additional products that will be required? If so, please specify the additional products.

Answer: The work required in this section shall be produced as outlined. New products shall be developed as directed by the PO.

27. Question:  Task III, D.2, states, “The contractor shall develop materials (in English, Spanish, and other languages and formats as appropriate to SAMHSA’s constituents.”  Could the Government please indicate how many other languages have been used in the past and how many materials and of what type have been distributed in the past?

Answer:  Offeror shall propose.  This contract has focused primarily on the development of Spanish language materials.  ONDCP has provided the Asian language materials.  And, recently the contract developed a Braille version of “Keeping Youth Drug Free”.  Quantities distributed of these materials varies.

28. Question:  Task III, D.3, indicates the contractor shall “Identify approximately 15 existing SAMHSA publications that should be put into alternative formats (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, CD-ROM) and widely promote their availability.” Would the Government please clarify how many of each of these alternative formats have been prepared in the past and how widely have they been distributed?

Answer: Offeror shall propose. For the budgeting purposes, assume Braille, large print, audiotape, CD-ROM.  Quantities of these materials distributed varies.
29. Question:  Task III, E.1, regarding radio and TV producer storylines and themes.  Could the Government please specify the number or approximate amount of level of effort that would be required to support this contractual requirement?

Answer:  Offeror shall propose.  For the budgeting purposes, assume 120 contacts/year.
30. Question:  Task III, E.1, regarding monthly media segments.  Could the Government please indicate the average length of time for each media segment?

Answer:  On average, media segments are1 minute 30 seconds running time. The SAMHSA Newsline, 800/272-7723, was inadvertently left off the list of toll-free lines maintained by the NCADI contract.  The Newsline is a weekly news feed that provides relevant and timely news features on substance abuse.  Each segment is professionally produced and ready to be aired.  Offeror should propose recommend media segment length.     

31. Question:  Task III, E.1, states that the contractor shall “Produce at 4-6 media segments per month on relevant substance abuse and mental health issues for the SAMHSA Radio Newsline, a news actuality service.” Would the Government please provide some examples of a media segment that has been produced for the SAMHSA Radio Newsline.

Answer:  Call the SAMHSA Newsline at 800/272-7723 for a sample media segment.

32. Question:  Task III, E.2, regarding speech writing.  Could the Government please specify the average length of each speech, in terms of the number of minutes?

Answer: Length of speeches varies from five (5) minute opening remarks to one hour for major presentations.  Average speech is 35 minutes.

33. Question:  Task III, E.2, states that the contractor shall “Produce a new SAMHSA 8”x 10” exhibit structure, which is consistent with the new SAMHSA Conference Exhibit Program.”  Should the structure be an 8 ft. x 10 ft. exhibit vs. an 8” by 10” exhibit?

Answer: Correction:  Exhibit structure shall be ten (10) feet wide by eight (8) feet tall.

34. Question:  Task III, E. 3. A. (Technical Assistance and Skill-Building), p. 23, states, “Provide ongoing technical assistance to RADAR Network Centers to adopt and/or adapt HHS/SAMHSA public education resources … and to provide support to SAMHSA events.” For budget purposes, please provide some guidance on the amount of ongoing TA (e.g., 1 TA activity for every center in the RADAR network, or up to 100 TA activities per year).

Answer:  For budgeting purposes, assume four technical assistance “packages”/year will be developed for the HHS/SAMHSA public education resources or SAMHSA events.  The intent is that the contractor will develop and disseminate TA materials, as appropriate, to assist RADAR Network Centers to use these resources in their communities. Onsite delivery of TA is not intended for this activity.

35. Question:  Task III, E. 3. A (Technical Assistance and Skill-Building), p. 23, states, “Develop and deliver skill-building workshops and on-line training events for RADAR Network Centers on topics supportive of knowledge dissemination and knowledge application.  For the proposal, assume 4 deliveries per year.”  Is the contractor responsible for travel and lodging costs for participants in the 4 deliveries?  How many participants per delivery?

Answer:  Offeror is responsible for providing participants’ travel.  For budgeting purposes, assume a maximum of 25 participants for onsite workshop deliveries (1 in DC and one in California) and an unlimited number of participants for on-line training events.  

36. Question:  Task III, E. 3. A (Technical Assistance and Skill-Building), p. 23, states, “Provide 75 scholarships/years, on a competitive basis, to the RADAR Network membership for workforce development opportunities…” Could the Government please clarify?

· Are these scholarships for one year or for one conference?

· Does each scholar travel to one conference?

· Are the scholars from all around the country?

· Have specific conferences been identified which they (the scholars) would attend?  If so, what are they?

Answer:  For budgeting purposes, assume an average of $1,000 per scholarship, one conference per person, and representation from across the country.  No conferences have been identified.

37. Question:  Task III, E. 4, paragraph 2, regarding presentations and skill-building opportunities for groups and organizations.  Does the Government anticipate that international presentations and skill-building opportunities would be required as part of this contract?

Answer:  No presentations outside of the United States are anticipated at this time.
38. Question:  Task III, E. 4, page 25, states, “Provide specialized technical assistance support in the area of knowledge dissemination to SAMHSA’s training and technical assistance grantees and contractors.  This support will include at a minimum, fielding information requests referred by these contractors and grantees.  Propose the types of technical assistance activities that may be undertaken to support these entities.”  For budget purposes, please provide some guidance on the amount of specialized TA support, for example, 10 events per year, or 10 packages per year.

Answer:  For budgeting purposes, assume four 2-hour events to be delivered in the Washington, DC metro area.  
39. Question: Task III, Cost Recovery, Section E, Should this requirement actually be numbered Task III, Section F?

Answer:  Yes.

40. Question:  Task IV, A, paragraph 1, regarding the repository.  Could the Government please specify the various sizes of the 400 photographs, slides, illustrations, stock footage, and computer graphic clipart that will be stored in the repository?

Answer:  The repository currently is 2,400 square feet.  Ranges from 8 ½ x 11 “ to 30 x 40” for flats (e.g., negatives).  

41. Question: Task IV, C. 1, page 29. What percentage of the 1.6 million copies do you expect to be reproduced in a printing operation versus photocopying? How many different pages are there? Can these materials be reproduced on a laser printer? Does this requirement call for duplex (both sides) printing? What percentage of the reproduction is flat color? What percentage of the reproduction is processed color?  
Answer: This requirement refers to photocopying only, not offset lithography.

42. Question: Task IV, C. 1, page 29, The paragraph states, “Reproduce (black and white-60 percent and color-40 percent) approximately 1.6 million pieces (single sheets) each month during the first year of operation, with a 15-20 percent increase for each year thereafter.”

What is the paper size of the 1.6 million monthly pieces (single sheets) 8-1/2x 11, 8-1/2x14 and/or 11x17?

Answer: Sizes vary.

43. Question: Task IV, C. Please provide the pallet count for materials currently stored in the NCADI and NMHIC warehouses.

Answer: There are approximately 4,500 pallets in use at the warehouse facility.

44. Question: Task IV, C. How many pallets on an average will be received annually at the warehouse?

Answer: The warehouse receives on average 1,650 pallets annually.

45. Question: Task IV, C. Approximately how many items are currently in the NCADI and NMHIC inventory?  What is the total quantity?

Answer: There are 4,176 individual titles, 35 million items in the total inventory.

46. Question: Task IV, C. Do skids/pallets (required for inbound/outbound motor freight shipments) currently stored at the incumbent warehouse meet the requirements of Federal Specifications NN-P-71C type III (i.e. 40” width & maximum height of 55)?

Answer: That is the government requirement for skids/pallets. We expect compliance with this requirement by the successful contractor.

47. Question: Task IV, C.1., How much of the quoted 2.7 million cubic feet is actually used for warehousing and distribution of materials?

Answer:  100 percent. 

48.Question: Task IV, C. Currently, are all materials with the exception of picking bins stored in pallet racks?  If not, what is the approximate square footage being utilized to store materials sitting on the floor?

Answer: All materials are stored on pallets.

49. Question: Task IV, C. Please provide the square footage required for periods of high demand and is this above and beyond the quoted requirement for 2.7 million cubic feet?
Answer:  Square footage for high demand varies and is within the 2.7 million cubic feet

requirement.

50. Question: Task IV, C. As compared to the 35,000,000 quantity specified, what is the maximum number of pieces of informational material that have to be stored at any one time?

Answer:  Given the inventory fluctuations, the 35M quantity remains relatively stable. 

51. Question: Task IV, C. How many bulk orders are shipped per month?  What is the average number of boxes and weight per box of one bulk order?

Answer: 2,000 bulks orders are shipped per month, quantities and weights varies.  Note:  Assumption for shipping costs was provided.

52. Question:  Task IV, C. We understand that bulk orders are packages over 50 pounds. We would like to know what is the average amount of different SKUs (unique items) per bulk order?

Answer: Composition of orders varies.

53. Question: Task IV. C. Please provide the breakdown of last year’s shipping costs and quantity of units shipped per category:

1. USPS 

2. UPS

3. Federal Express

4. Other

Answer: Assumption for shipping costs was provided. Offeror shall propose best mix of shipping methods.

54. Question: Task IV, C. How many individual orders are shipped per month?

Answer:  See Task II B., The number of requests for NMHIC is corrected from 110,781 to 43,319 in 2002, NCADI received 553,724 requests in 2002. Approximately 85 percent of requests generate orders.  

55. Question: What are the current business hours and days for the distribution center?

Answer: 8:30 am – 6:00 pm M-F

56. Question: Task IV, C. Please advise bidders as to your definition of an individual (non-bulk) order?

Answer: An individual order is a single order of less than 50 lbs. sent to a single destination.

57. Question: Task IV, C. What is the average quantity of different SKUs (unique items) to be picked per individual (non-bulk) order?

Answer: Quantity and composition varies.

58. Question: Task IV, C. Are individual requests shipped to foreign destinations? If so, please provide annual quantity shipped to foreign destinations.

Answer: Yes, foreign orders are charged for shipping.  On average, foreign orders represent less than 0.5 percent of all requests.

59. Question: Task IV, C. Last year, how many individual requests/orders went into a back-order status due to no inventory to support request and on average per month, how many orders were affected.

Answer: None, orders are shipped with available inventory.

60. Question: Task IV, C. Last year, how many BULK requests/orders (packages over 50 lbs) for publications were mailed?

Answer:   17,593 bulk orders were shipped for NCADI.  Data is unavailable for NMHIC because the contract uses the Parklawn Mailroom to handle its shipping needs.

61. Question: Task IV, C. Are Bulk Order requests shipped to foreign destinations?  If so, please provide annual quantity.

Answer:  Yes, but all foreign orders are charged for shipping.  On average, foreign orders represent less than 0.5 percent of all requests.

62. Question: Task IV, C. Last year, how many bulk orders requests/orders went into a back-order status due to no inventory to support request?

Answer: None, orders are shipped with available inventory.

63. Question Task IV, C. Which benchmarks are currently in place to measure the effectiveness of “best rate” postage?

Answer: Offeror shall propose.

64. Question: Task IV, C. How much growth in order fulfillment has been experienced over the last 4 years?

Answer: From Oct. 2002 to Sept. 2003 (NMHIC distributed 1,341,896 publications, a 6% increase over the previous year.) From January through December 2003, NCADI distributed 21,103,449 items, a decrease of 3.4% from the last calendar year.

65. Question: Task IV, C.2, page 30, For the requirement, to “Devise a system to significantly reduce current inventory…” does the Government want the contractor to devise a marketing plan to significantly reduce current inventory or is the aim to reduce the numbers of items, or move to a just-in-time supply system?  What assumptions should be made for related reductions in warehousing space and costs?

Answer: Offeror shall propose.

66. Question: Task IV, D, ADP Proposed Resources. Does the note referencing a requirement for submitting ADP/FIP Cost sheets, budget, and narrative refer to post-award activities, or should we include this information in our proposal?

Answer:  The ADP/IT plan shall be included as a deliverable, draft due 15 days EDOC, final due 2 months EDOC, updated annually.

67. Question:  Task V, indicates that “Across all task areas, the contractor shall conduct pre-testing of proposed new resources and services, assess customer satisfaction with existing resources and services, measure contract performance ... and assess product and service efficacy.” Could the Government please clarify what measures have been used previously for program evaluation?  Are the measures the same for both NCADI and NMHIC activities? Will offerors have the opportunity to review performance measures currently used by the incumbent contractor?

Answer: Offeror shall propose.  Performance measures are in the Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan.  

68. Question: Task V, page 32. Can the Government describe how the 85 percent customer satisfaction measure is determined?  Is this indicator an interval level score on a scale of 1 to 100 or derived from ordinal data where 85 percent of customer satisfaction responses are positive ratings?

Answer: Derived from customer service survey responses.

69. Question: Task V, First bullet, This bullet requests corporate qualifications rather than technical methods. Is this an error in the RFP?  

Answer: No. Offeror shall propose methods and provide qualifications.

70. Question:  Task V, E.4, states, “Across all task areas, the contractor shall conduct pre-testing of proposed new resources and services, assess customer satisfaction with existing resources and services, measure contract performance (cost-efficiency, cost-effectiveness, market penetration), and assess product and service efficacy.  The contractor shall be qualified to develop and/or update customer service survey and other packages for clearance by OMB.”  For budget purposes, please provide some guidance on the number of OMB clearance packages to be prepared each year.

Answer:  For budgeting purposes, assume in addition to the existing surveys listed in the PWS, that an additional 6 clearance packages will be developed.

71. Question: What is the breakdown of the 553,724 requests received by NCADI by type of communication channel (i.e., phone, mail, email, fax, Internet, etc.)?

Answer: See Task II, B, Telephone (86%-476,203); U.S. Mail (1%-5,537); Fax (1%-5,537) and e-mail (12%-66,447).    

72. Question: What is the breakdown of the 110,781 requests received by NMHIC by type of communication channel (i.e., phone, mail, email, fax, Internet, etc.)?

Answer: See Task II, B, CORRECTION - NMHIC received 43319 requests in 2002, breakdown as follows.  Telephone (25,444); U.S. Mail (1,281); Fax (1,079); online shopping cart (11,862); e-mail (3,131); other (342). 
73. Question: Based on the receipt of approximately 42,000 calls received by NCADI per month what is the distribution of calls by time-of-day?

Answer: See Task II, B, The average percentage and number of calls answered by Shift 1 (12 a.m.-8 a.m.—7 percent, 2,940 calls); Shift 2 (8 a.m.-4 p.m.—66 percent, 27,720 calls); and Shift 3 (4 p.m.-12 a.m.—11,340 calls). 

74. Question:  Will the Government consider calculating the award fee more frequently than annually?

Answer:  No. Award fee will be based on 12 month period.

75. Question:  Will the Government consider rolling over any unpaid balance of the award fee from period to period?

Answer:  No, we do not roll-over award fee balances.

76. Question:  The customer satisfaction rate stated in the Schedule of Deliverables is 85%, while the customer satisfaction rate stated in the Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan is 95%.  Please clarify.

Answer:  Customer Satisfaction Rate shall be 85%.
77. Question:  What restrictions or privacy requirements to the retention, storage, and use of the customer related data must the contractor follow?

Answer: Privacy Act applies to all aspects of this contract.

Section F – Deliveries or Performance

78. Question:  F.2.A., p. 14, requires Standard Form 294 and 295 reporting.  Could the Government please clarify whether the procurement is a small business set-aside?  If so, will small business reports and goals be applicable to this procurement and is the offeror required to submit a small business-subcontracting plan? 

Answer:  This procurement is a Total Small Business Set-Aside.  Delete all references to the submission of SF294s and SF295s.  A Small Business Plan is not required.
Section L – Instructions, Conditions, and Notices to Offerors

79. Question: Section L.2(c)(2) of the RFP on page 66 states that "A cover sheet must be completed and submitted together with a detailed breakdown of estimated costs for each year...........In addition, a cover sheet and cost breakdown should be furnished for contract summary amounts." 

Similarly in Section L.2(c)(6) on page 68 the text states that "The offeror shall submit a cost proposal for each year."

Please confirm whether it is necessary to submit a separate cost proposal for each year or if a separate budget for each year will suffice. Also confirm if it is necessary to submit multiple cover sheets with the same cost proposal.

Answer: 

80. Question:  1(f)(4), p. 55, states, “The Government intends to evaluate proposals and award a contract without discussions” while Alternative I (f)(4), p. 56, indicates “the Government intends to evaluate proposals and award a contract after conducting discussions with offerors whose proposals have been determined to be within the competitive range”.  Would the Government please clarify which reference applies to this solicitation?

Answer:  Both.  The Government may enter into negotiations as necessary in order to make contract award.

81. Question:  1(f)(6), p. 55, states, “The Government reserves the right to make multiple awards if, after considering the additional administrative costs, it is in the Government’s best interest to do so” while Attachment 1, Section C, II., p. 2, states “SAMHSA plans to award a single contract…” Would the Government please clarify which reference applies to this solicitation?

Answer: We reserve the right to make multiple awards if it's in the best interest of the Government, but we anticipate making a single contract award.

82. Question:  C.1, p. 66 specifies that offerors provide a 12-month budget for each year of the contract (including options) and a cumulative budget base and option years. Could the Government provide historical expenditures for the NCADI and NMHIC contracts?  Would the Government provide the number of labor hours and FTEs charged to the NCADI and NMHIC contracts?

Answer:  Labor hour estimates and FTEs are not available on this solicitation.

83. Question: L.2.C.2(i), p. 66, Business Proposal Instructions indicates that the fringe benefits must be shown for each staff member. However, Attachment 8, Breakdown of Proposed Estimated Costs indicates, that fringe benefits should be shown for the entire labor pool, not by person. Would the Government please clarify?

Answer:  Propose the name, title, hours, percent of effort, salary and fringe benefits for each employee.

84. Question: L.2.C.6, p. 68, states "The offeror shall submit a cost proposal for each year." Would the Government please confirm that we should submit yearly budgets by task contained within one cost proposal?

Answer: Yes, offerors should submit yearly budgets by task within one cost proposal.
Section M – Evaluation Factors for Award

85. Question:  A., p. 70, states, “Selection of an offeror for contract award will be based on an evaluation of proposals against four factors.  The factors are as follows: technical, past performance and cost.”  Could the Government please clarify the number of factors and what the individual factors are?

Answer: Factors are: 1. Understanding of the Project  (15% of total score) 2. Technical Approach (35% of total score) 3. Key Personnel (35% of total score) 4. Management Plan and Facilities (15% of total score)
86. Question:  Evaluation Criteria 3 (Key Personnel) Item 5, p. 72, states, “Serve at least 85% on the project” while the Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan, Task II (Attachment 2), indicates the standard to be met is “90%”.  Could the Government please clarify this requirement for Project and Deputy Project Directors? 

Answer: The proposed Project and Deputy Project Directors shall serve at least 85% on the project.
87. Question: The PWS states, "All personnel, including those not currently on staff, should be identified, with résumés submitted for all proposed personnel" and the statement on Page 3 of the Performance Work Statement under II. Objective; Instructions regarding proposal submission; states, “Résumés should be provided for all proposed staff, including subcontractors." which differs from the statement on Page 65 of Section L under B.) Technical Proposal Instructions; a.) Recommended Technical Proposal Format; 4.f.4 Résumés which reads, "Résumés of all key personnel are required."  Does the Contracting Officer wish that every proposed staff person's résumé be submitted?

Answer: Change: Résumés of all professional staff/key personnel shall be included. 

88. Question:  Evaluation Criteria 4 (Management Plan and Facilities), p. 73, states, “The offeror should provide a plan to implement and maintain all facilities and equipment necessary to conduct the tasks outlined in the SOW.”  Could the Government please clarify what facilities and equipment are required to be centrally located at the headquarters site referenced in Attachment 1, Section C, and III.A.1, p. 3?

Answer: Offeror shall propose.

Business Proposal Questions

89. Question: It has been customary for subcontractors to submit under sealed package the details of their costing to protect the proprietary nature of the business models for cost and pricing. The instructions have indicated under this procurement that this is not acceptable and that all subcontractor data is to be provided under the prime business proposal submission. Please confirm this understanding.

Answer:  Yes, subcontractor data is to be provided under the prime business proposal submission.  The Prime Contractor's submission should include each subcontractor's separate package with the details of their detailed individual costs.
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